VDOIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (rormERLY Vdoit

Technologies Private Limited)
REG. Office: 912, EMAAR PALM SQUARE, SEC.66, GURUGRAM, HARYANA, 122011

CIN: UT2200HR2015PLCOS4827

DRECTOR'S REPORT
T,
The Shareholders,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Financial Accounts for the Year ended March 31, 2023,

FINANCLAL SUMMARY Y HIGHLIGHTS
The Board hereby confirms that the Financial Statements of the company 1z disclosing tree and fair view of

the state of atfairs of the Company:

" Particulars Standalone 2022- | Standalone | Consolidated | Comsolidated
| 2023 20212022 | 20022023 | 20212022 il
' Revenue from Operations 4,79,22 873 | 3.21. 80,657 | 4,79.22 873 | -
 Other Income 792303 | 1,50,265 | 792,303 | .
 Total Income 487,15,177 | 3.23,30,922 | 4,87,15,177 —

Total Expenses 21076277 | 2.01,71,845 | 2,11,72.873 -

¥et Profit / (Loss) Before 2,76,38,900 | 1,21,59.077 | 2,75,42,303 -

X

_Tax expense for current year 69.73,010 | 32.78,175 | 6948700 | @ -
| Deferred tax (4.40,701) (4.215) | (4,40,701) -

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax 2.06,65890 | $8.80,902 | 2,06,12,922 -

carried 10 Reserve & Surplus 25 = |
_Earnings Per Share (EPS) 2066.59 888.00 |  2061.29 -

FINANCIAL PERFOERMANCE REVIEW
There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended 319 March, 2021,
The Company has been able to generate profit before tax of Rs 2,76 38,900/~ for the vear 2022-23 as
compared to previous year of Rs 1,21,59,077/-

DIVIDEND
Mo Dividend was declared for the carrent financial year.

HOLDING - SUBSIDIARY RELATIONSHIP
To expand the business activities of the company, during the year, as on 6th February 2023, the company
incorporated a subsidiary VDOIT US, LLC in the United States of America with 80% ownership, However,
there was no investment by the company till 31.03.2023 in the newly incorporated subsidiary. The subsidiary
also did not stan any operations tll 31.03.2023. There iz no revenuve/expendiiure in subsidiary company
except company incorporation expenses of 1,175 (Hs. 96, 597

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of vour Company prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, The Consolidated Financial Statements, consolidates the company




figures with VDOIT US, LLC and is presented before yvou along with the Standalone Financial
Statement for the year ending on 31% March, 2023,

The Authorized Share Capital as on 31% March, 2023 was Rs. 4,000,000/ divided into 40,000 Equity shares of
Rs. 10 each and paid-up Share Capital as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 1,00,000/- divided into 10,000 Equity
Shares of Bs. 10 each. There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the vear under report.

However, your Hoard shall like to take note that subsequent to the date of preparation of the Financial
Statements, we increased the Authorised Share Capital to Rs. 5 Crores. Your Board would also like to ke
note that you have authorised issue of Bonus Shares, utilising the reserves available with your company as on
31* March, 2023. Your Board shall like to thank you for the approval for the process and looks forward o
continue to take such steps for expanston of vour Company,

IMEECTORS  WEY MANALERIAL PERSONNEL {KMP)

There has been change in the constitution of Board during the year under review ie.. the Company made
following appointment and resignations of Directors and whole time KMPs,

Sr | Marfe Designation Date of | Date af |
no. . Appointment Resignation

l Manu Chopra Independent Director 9.1 1.2022 -
& Kamal Gulati Independent Director 9.11.2022 —~

3 Dhamini Chhabra Independent Dircctor 13.12.2023 -

4 Vinita Bansal _| Chief Financial Officer 4.01.2023 -~
5| Shilpa Company Secretary 23.01.2023 - H
6 Rajan Malhotra Independent Director | 13,12,2023 02.03.2023

However, Directors appointed as on 9.11.2022and 13.12.2023 Mr. Kamal Gulati, Mr. Manu Chopra and Ms,
Dhamini Chhabra are regularized in Extraordinary General Meeting 3™ March ,2023.

FARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

AMOUNT TRANSFER TO RESERVE
Profit of Rs 2,06,65,890/-was transferred to the reserves during the financial vear ended 31 March, 2023,

EXTRACT OF AMNUAL RETHREN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of Companies Act2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in MGT-9 for the financial vear ending 31% March,
2023 1s not applicable. The Annual return of the company in from MGT -7 is available on the website of the
COompany,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the period 2022-23, the Board of Directors met 11 times as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, wherever applicable.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the vear were in Ordinary Course of business and at Arm’s
Length hasis. Mo Material Related Party Transactions, ie., transactions excesding 10% of the Annual
Consolidated Tumover as per the last Audited Financial Statements, were entered during the year by your



Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 13403 ¥h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOQC-2 is not applicable.

FXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESEVATIONS OE ADY ERSE

REMARKS OR IMSCLAIMER MADE BY THE AU TORS AND PRACTIODSCG COMPANY
SFECRETARY IS THEIR REPOERTS,
Accounts and Auditors remarks in thewr report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT
Company has not conducted secretarial Audit from Company Secretary in Practice as the provision of Section
containing Secretarial Audit requirement ax per Companies Act, 20013 and Rules made thereunder iz not

applicable on the Company.

COST AUDETOR

Company has not conducted Cost Awdit from Cost Auditor in Practice as the provision of Section containing
Cost Audit requirement as per Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder is not applicable on the
Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. SATINDER GOYAL & CO., Statutory Auditors of the Company having (FRN NO. 027334N),
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company for a period of five (05) years in Board Meeting and
therr appointment is subject to ratification at the ensuing Annual General meeting of the Company.

The Company has received confirmation from Mfs. SATINDER GOYAL & CO. Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors to the effect that their proposed appointment, if made would be within
the limits prescribed under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Y our directors recommend their mtification as Statutory Auditors of the Compamy.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the directors hereby state that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2023, the
applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating o
material departures;

b} The directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as lo give a true and fair view of the State
of Affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the loss of the company for that period under
FEVICWY

¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} The directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a Going Concern Basiz and;

e} The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 11/S 149 (&)
Your Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under section 149%7) of
the Companies Act, 20013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down i section 1496 of the
Compames Act, 2013, The Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have enrolled
themselves in the Independent Directors” Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Adfairs (IICAT) in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule & of the Companies (Appointment &
Chualification of Divectors) Kules, 2014,



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FiNANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TOWHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REFORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
end of the financial vear to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule B of Companies
{Accounts) Rules 2014, details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outpo are as follows:

(A) Conservation of energy:

Energy conservation is an area of priority and the Company has made all efforts to ensure continuous
monitoring and improvement in energy consumption in all its offices.

(B) Technology absorption:

Being in the business of providing clean energy, the Company 15 constantly Iooking al innovation
and technology absorption to increase production efficiency in its business.

Statement giving the detals of conservation of energy, technology sbsorption and foreign exchange
carning & outge in accordance with requirements of Section 134 (3m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is as follows: -

(C) Foreign Fxchange Earnings and Ouigo

The foreign exchange earnings and oulpo during the vear as follows: -
Foreign Exchange Earning 2.53,91,980

Fareign F.xn!umg_c fhtgi'r_ >

RISK MAN [ POLICY
The Company has developed a very comprehensive risk management policy and the same iz reviewed by the
Management at perindical intervals, about the risk assessment and minimization procedures adopted by the
management. Al the corporate level major risks are reviewed by the Directors and direciions in this regard are
msed accordingly. key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic business
plans and in pericdic management reviews. The risk management process in our multi-business, multi-site
operations, over the period of time will become embedded into the Company’s business systems and
processes, such that our responses to risks remain corrent and dvnamic.

SIGNTFICART AND THE MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going
concemn status of the Company and its future operations.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has adopled a prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexunl Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexoal harassments at workplace. All women
asanciate’s (permanent, femporary, contractual and trainees) as well as any woman visiting the Company's
office premises or women service providers are covered under this Policy.

Dwring the vear under review, no complaimt was received by the Company related 1o sexval harassment



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY INITIATIVES
Mo disclosures on Corporate Social Responsibility are required as provision under Sectiom 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are applicable on the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined in the Section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

a. Buy Back of Securities
'he Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b. Sweat Equity

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the vear under review.
¢, Bomus Shares

Mo Bonus Shares were issued during the vear under review.
d. Employees Stock Option Plan
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employess.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014
are applicable to your Campany and during the period under consideration, no employee of the Company was
in receipt of remuneration exceeding the sum prescribed under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 resd
with Rule 5{2) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your directors place on records their gratitude o the Company’s valued Customers, Suppliers, Central and

State Government authorities, Bankers and Shareholders for their continued support and confidence and 1o the
employees for their dedicated services.

For and on behall of Board
VDOIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED {(FORMERLY Vdoit Technologies Private Limited)

Dade: 1000 July, 2023
Place: GURUGRAM



VDOIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
CIN: U72200HR2015PLCOS4827; Email: ncetu. guptagvdoit.in
Reg Address: 012, Emaar Palm Square, Sector - 66 Curugram, Haryana- 122011

NOTICE FOR THE 3™ ANNLAL GENERAL MEETING

MOTICE s Heraby Given That the 8" Annual General Mesting {AGM) of the members of YORIT
Technologies Limited will be hald on Monday, the 12"June, 2023 gt 2:00 p.m. at tha registerad office of the
Company at 912, Emaar palm Square, Secior 68, Funsgraen, Haryana-122011, to transact the folketwing
Businessas

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Ity Mo 1: Tar Recelva, considar and adogpt the Standalons and conecdigdgted aydited Haluncs Sheot

ag gt ¥ rch, 3023 and of F 2 Tor r that daile

ra irecto nd Au rs 0.

| o I Awlitors a to fik their un ian_ang te with wiith
difications tha Fllowd oclution &% an Crdi, Rasoiution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant tp the provisions of Section 139 142 and olher applicable provisions, if any,
of tha Companies Act, 2013 anal Lompanies [Audit & Auditors) Rykes, 2014 finclucng any statutory magif-
tion(=), or re-snachments thereof for the time being in force) Mis. Satinder Goyal & Co IFRN ND,
027324M}), be and amm heraby appointed as Statutory Auditors of tha Company for a term of 5 | five) consac-
biliye year from the conclusicn of this Annual =aneral Wl 1he conclusion af the Smin Annual General Mas]-
ing gnm this Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration a9 shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give eMfect 1o above resolution, Boar of the drectors of the Company, be
and is hereby sevarally authorized I =in and file all the neceszary fomz and olher nacessary documents
25 may be requined with e stahtony authorities including, the Registrar of Companwes, Dedhi and all other
relevant racomds and 1o do gl other acts ard deeds neceseary far completing and updatng the records of
the Campany.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

lfem N 3: Ta Consl a rove | aof us shares:

sumsz stanting 1o the credit of the frea reserves andior tha SSCNtes premum actount andior B Suih ofhwer
ACCuNE A5 May ba consickened RecesEary by Board of Direclors of tha Company {"the Boad™), for the
purpose of the issue of bonus equity shares of 10/ each, cradied as fdly paid-up equity shares o fhe
holders of the exishng equity shaves of the Company in considaration of their saikl holding and whose
names appear in the Regisler of Membars maintained by the Cormpany’list of Benefical Owners as




TR ——————————s—m—m—m—m—m———————n————.

received from the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited {CDSL), on such date as may be fixed in this regard by the Board, in the proportion of 300 (Three
hundred) fully paid up equity share for every 1 (One) existing fully paid up equity shares held by the

Members.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the bonus equity shares so allotted shall rank pan passu in all respects with
the fully paid-up equity shares of the Company as existing on such date as may be fixed in this regard by

the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the bonus equity shares shall be credited in dematerialised form to the
respective beneficiary accounts of the members held with their respective Depository Parlicipant(s), within
such time as prescribed by law and the relevant authorities

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions, the Board including

any Committee

of the Board or person authorised by the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such

acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be
required and as it may in it sole and absolute discretion deem nacessary, expedient or incidental in regard
to issue of bonus shares including bBut not imited 1o filing of any documents with Depositories. Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and’ or any concemed authorities, applying and seeking necessary approvals and fo
settie any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of fractional shares, if any, ansing out of the issue and allotment of
the bonus equity shares, the Board be and is hereby authorized to ignore such fractions andlor round off

such fraction to

the lowest number and/or fo make suitable arangements to deal with such fractions for the

benefit of the eligible Members, including but not limited to, allotting the total number of new equity shares
representing such fractions to a persen(s) to be appointed by the Board who would hold them in trust for
such Members and shall as soon as possible sell such equity shares at the prevailing rate and the net sale
proceeds of such equity shares, after adjusting the cost and the Expenseas in respact thereof, be distributed
among such Members who are entitied to such fractions in the proportion of their respective fractional

entittements

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board including

any Committee

of the Board or person authorised by the Board, be and is hereby authorised to do all such

acts. deeds, matters and things including but not limited to filing of necessary forms/documents with the
appropriate authorities and to execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it may in its
sole and absolute discretion deem necessary or axpedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that
may arise in regard therato.”

Place: Gurgaon

By Order of the Board of Directors of

VOOIT T, nologies LIEM
i b =
\ H:rlﬁr Kumar Kamra

Managing Director
DIN: 07102531

Date: 8% June, 2023



NOTES

1. Furzuant lo Section 105 of the Companies Act 2043 and Rule 193] of the Companies (Managament and
Admirssirglion) Rules, 2014, a member ertitiad to attend and vote st the meeting & anitled to appoint &
proxy 10 attend and vole instaad of himgeli, Tha proxy need not be 3 member, Proxies in arder o ba
affective must reach ihe registered offica of the Company before the commencamenl of 1he maating in
Farm MGT - 11 annexed hereto.,

2. Pursuant to Section 113{1) of the Companies Azt 2013, Comarate members are requasted to sene
cerlified copy of board resolution authorzing the represanialive bo attend and vote on Hweir bBehatf at the
teehng. Shareholders ara requesied to notify the thanges n ther address, f any, Io he Company
immediatety

d  The meelmg is proposed to be held on a shorter notice. Pursuant ko saction 101(1) of tha Comparies ACL,
2013, the sharaholders ara requested Lo kindly sign and =ubmil their consent to hald e mesling ot
shorter notice in the form annexed hereto.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 102 AND 110 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2011

Itamn Mg 3: To Consjder and A rove 1$sue of Bonys shares:

With a wiew to reward the exisling members of the Company and to broed basa Ihe capial of the Company,
the Beard of Directery of the Company, ai s meeting hed on June 08, 2023 after congldering tha avajlable
reserves and gubject to the approval of the members of the Company and all other requisite approvals.
CRNSEnls, Permissions, sanchions, hes approved ang eoommendad & Bornus Issls of aquity shares jn the
rabo of 300 (Three Hundred) fully paid op aquity share for every 1 (One) exisling lilly paid up equity shaves
held as on & recornt date to be determined by the Company.

In caze of fractional anlitiements atising out of the iszue of bonus equity shares, ihe Board of Direciors will
maka suitable arangements o deal with such fractlons for the benefit of the ahgible Members, nchading but
nok kmitad te rounding off the faction to Ihe lower numberiignore the fraction ar aggregating of such frac-
tions and allciting the total number of new equity shares representing such Fractions 1o & parsonig) 1o be
appaintad by lhe Board who would held them in trust for such Members and shall as soan as possible sl
such equity shares al the pravailing rate and the net salke proceeds of such shares, after adjustng the cosl
and the expenses in respact thersal, be distnbuted ameng such Mambars,

Accardingly, resclution of thes notice seaks membars' appraval for capilabzalion of the amourd standing to
the credit of free resarves andior the secirities prEMIUm acoound on the termes and conditions sel out in the
resolulions.

NG Rirectar, Key Maragenial Personnel of Iheir relatwes ara in any way cohcemned or (mterested in the reso-
lutien of this Nobite except 1o the extent of their sharehakding




The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the notice for approval of the Members,

By Order of the Board of Directors of

VDOIT Technologies Limite
% N L

1 m_,..\_.“'\--\_,_-"
i

h Narinder Kumar Kamra
Managing Director
DIN: 07102531

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 8" June, 2023




VIMIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
CIN: U7Z200HR20 1 SPLCUSAR2T: Emnail: nesty, g ptajEhdnit in
Reg Address: %1%, Emaar Palm Square, Sector - 66 Gurugram, Haryana- 12201]

PROXY FORM - Form No. MGT -11

|Purauant to section 105{5} of tha Companies Act, 2013 and rule 183 of the Compar s
(Managemenl and Adminigtration) Rules, 201 4]

| Hame of Mamber !
Registered address

Folig Me./ DP 1D/ Client No. ) |
| Emzl Id

| ! ¥e, being the memberst of shares of the above named company,
hereby appoint the person named below al Sr No. 1

| Sr.Mo Mama af Proxy Address & Email Id Signature |
]
As my ! our proxy to atlend and vole (on 2 poll) for melus and on myfour benaf at the
8th Annual General Meeting of the Company ta be held on Morday, the 12thJure, 2023 at
200 p.m. st the regiclered office of the Company at 912, Emaar palm Sgquare, Sector 66,

Gurugram, Haryana-122011 or at any adjaumment thereof in respect of such resohdions az
ara ind|=ated balonw:

| Dascniphon ' [ Vots {optional
' zee Note 34

“Far Against

1. Aduption of Audited Financial Statements togedher with the
Reports of the Auditore” and Diractors” thereon:

2. Ratificalior of the appointment of Mfs. Satnder Goval &
Co {FRN MO, 027334M) a5 Statitory Auditors of the

Cornparry
3 To Consider ard Approve |sse of Bonus shares,

Sigred Hhis dzy of 023 ATy

FEVErIL e
Signature of Praxy holder|g} Swnelure of Sharehoider slamp
Motes:

1. The form of proxy in eeder to be affective should be duly completed and deposited at tha
Registared Office of tha Compeany. not leter than 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeting.

2 It 18 optional to indicala your preferenge by tick mark. If you ieava the Forfgans! column
Hank against any or all rasolubicns, yeur proxy will be ertifled to vole in the manner s
he/she may deem apprapriate.



VDT TECHNOQLOGIES LIMITED
CIN: UT2200HR2G15TLC054827; Email: neclu prptaivdeit in
Reg Adddress: 912, Emaar FPalm Square, Soctor - 68 Gurugram, Haryuna- 122011

Atlendance Slip for Bth Annual General Meeting

Maima ol the
Member

Mare of the Proxy
(To be filled in, if
the Proxy atterds
instead of b
MMber s

Address of 1he
Member

Joint Haldar 1

Joint Halder 2 |
I hereby record my presence: &l the SIhANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company hekd

on Monday, the 12th Juna, 2023 st 2.00 p m. @l the registered office of the Company at 912,
Emaar palm Square, Sector 66, Gunsgram, Haryana-122011

Flral / Sole Halder / Proxy Sacond Holder £ Proxy

MOTES:

1. A Member / Froxy atterding the meeting must complete this Attendance slip in legible
wiiting and hand it over at the entrance. Sign at appropriate place as applicable to you.

2. In the case of joint holders . 1he vote of 1he senior wha tenders a wate, whether in person
or by Proxy. shall be accapted to the exclusion of the vote of the othar joint holders

Seniority shall be dalermined by the order in which Ihe names stand in the Ragistar af
Maribers.

3. Bedy Corporate / Company, whe are a mamber, may attend through its representative.
Qriginal sopy of aulthorzabion f resalution should be depasited with tha Company.

4. Pleass read the nstruclions printed under the Motes to the Naotica of thizs ATH Annual
General Meeting.
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% SATINDER GOYAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors® Report

To the Members of VDOIT Technologies Private Limited
Hepori on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of VDOIT Technologies
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes 1o
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter refemred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 1o us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companics
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformily
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis far Opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in
the “Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone financial statements™ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thercunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have oblained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

T'he Company ‘s Board of Direciors is responsible for the maiters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
lair view of the hnancial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgemenis and estimates that are reasonsble and prudent; and

jgn, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were

L, srgting effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
* | Naly Palhi| *

G’w D-23, Sector-3, Bawana Industrial Area, Delhi-110039
E-mail : satindergoyalandco@gmail.com
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relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In ﬁrepm*ing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for asscssing the
company's ability to continue as going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related o
going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease the operations, or has no realistic allernative but 1o
doy 80,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
Progess,

Aunditor’'s Responsibilities for the Aundit of standalone financial statements

Our objectives arc to obtain rensonable assurance about whether the standalone Anancial
stalements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror, and 1o
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranee is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expeeted 1o
influcnce the economic dectsions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
slatements.

As part of an andit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintan
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sutficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of mternal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order 1o
design audit procedurcs that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)1) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

=  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the approprialencss of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability 1o continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our asditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statement or, if such diselosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

e conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
j@t g soeport. However, future events or conditions may cause the company 1o cease 0
*

.% nlinie 68 a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentstion, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

~ represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with those charped with povernance regarding, among other matters. the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intermal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a4 statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
and where applicable, related safepuards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

bd

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Urder”), 1ssued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)

b)

€l

d)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.,

In pur opinion, proper books of accounts 4s required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts,

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rales
issued thereunder,

OIn the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March,
20023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, nonc of the directors are disqualified as
on 317 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”, Our report expresses an unmaodilied opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectivencss of the Company’s intemal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other maiters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section |97{] &) of the Act, as amended:
Gﬂm{r




In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in
_~ aceordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auoditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company did not have any pending litigations
b} The Company did not have any long term contracts incloding derivative contracts.

¢} Dwuring the vear, the company was not Hable to transfer any amount to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

d) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come o our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations/disclosures under sub-clanse (i) and (ii) of Rule
11{e} contain any material mis-statement, (Reler Note Mo, 31 1o the financial
statements)

¢) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend dunng the year,

For Satinder Goyal & Co.
o —— Chartered Accountants
_r?i CO¥ g, Firm's Regn. No: 027334N
i

)&,
w ?P ot u Jain
Date : 08" June 2023 Membership No, ; 541369

Place : Gurugram, Haryana LITMN : 23514369BGZHGK 4891



ANNEXURE “A”™ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report om Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of VDOIT
Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 317 March,2023)

i) (a) (A} The company is maintaining proper records showing full pm'llculars
including quanfitative details and situation of Property. Plani and
Equipment;
(B)| According to information and explanations given to us, as on balance sheet
date the company does not have any intangible assets; _
| (b} Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and o material discrepancies wers
noticed on such verification;

ic) According to information and explanations given to us, as on balance sheet
datr the company does not have any immovable property;

(d) The company has not revalued its Propenty, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year:

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings

have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions ( Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder;

(i) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Hence requirements of clause
(it} of Paragraph 3 of aforesaid order is not applicable;
] The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of

five crore rupees, in aggregate, during the year from banks or financial
institutiens on the basis of security of current assets;
(i} According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on
audit procedures performed. we are of the opinion that during the year the
company has not made any investments and not provided any guaraniee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
partics. However, during the month of February 2023, a foreign subsidiary
'I-"I'h:l[T LI‘I LLE Was innmm‘alﬁi in USA, there were no investment or

{iv) According ln the information and cxpla.nuums gwen to us and based on
audit procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans,
mvestments, guarsntees and security, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act;

(v} The Company has not am:pd.nl any deposits’ deemed deposit, As such
requirements of clause (v} of parmagraph 3 of aforesaid order 5 not

| applicable.

{vi) According 1o the information and Explamtm _g.wen o us, the Central

Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
I section [48(1) of the Act in respect of services carmied oul by the Company.
(vitd | (a) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed, the company is regolar in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fumd, emplovees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory does
to the appropriate authorities. Mo such dues are outstanding as on 3 st
March 2023 for a period exceeding six months;
According to the records and information and L.:-ipl.uml.mn glw:n to us, there
are no dues inrespect of Income tax, Sales ax, VAT, Service-tax, Custom
duty, cess pulstending as al March 31, 2023 due o any dispuie,

According to the records and information and explanation given to us, no




| trunsaction/amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

()™

(a)

According o the information and explanations given tw us by the
management, the company has not availed any facility from bank/ financial
institution, Hence requirements of this clause 1 not applicable ;

(k)

=

Aceording to the infowmation and explanations given to us by the
management, the company is not declared willful defaukter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender:

Amnﬂmg o the information and explanations given to us by the |
management, the company has not availed any facility from bank/ financial
instituticm. Hence requirements of thas clause is not applicable. ;

(<)

According to the records and information and explanation given to us,
company has not raised any funds |

(<)

According o the records and ml‘unnaucrn and mpla.mlauu Eiven v us, the
com pany hias not taken any funds from any entity or person on aecoumni of or

to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associstes or joint ventures;;

{f

(a)

(b)

According o the records and information and E‘-.J;I-]&I'IB:TII:H! given to us, the
company has nol raised any loan during the vear on the pludgr.'a of securitics

held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

Drunng the vear, the cnmpany has not msﬂd any money by wn}' of initial

(u)

Durmg the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, cartied out in accordance with the generally accepted awditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
tor us, we have neither come across any instance of {raud by the company or
on the company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of sy such case by the Manspement;

{b)

Mo report under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Ccﬁnpﬂniﬂ;ﬁ& has

been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of

(c}

According 1o the records and information and explanation given 1o us, there
15 no_whistle-blower complaint_received during the vear by the company;

Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

{xii)

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence this clause is nol
applicable to the company; ——_E

(xiii)

.-'Lm:rrdmg to the informatiom and explanations given o us and based on our
cxamination of the records of the company, all transactions with the related
parties entered into during the yvear are in compliance with sections 177 &
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the fimancial siatements as required by the applhcable
pecounting standards:

(xiv)

{xv)

As per mformation and explanation given to us and as explained 1o us by
the management, there 5 no internal audit system in the company a5 not

| required

According o the mformation and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not eatercd
e any nob- cash transaction with directors or person connected with them
during the year;

{a)

(b

The company @5 o raqmrr:d to be registered under seotion 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The company has nod conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the vear,

The company 1s not & Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India;

The campany has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and




— | in the immediately precedine financial vear;
{xviii) During current financial vear, previous anditors were resigned from the
- company. However, no issues, objoctions or concems were there, which
_' wire mised by the outgoing auditor;
(xix) On the basis of the financial raties, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the fmancial statements, our knowledpe of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertnnty exists as on the date of the andit report that company is capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the daie of balance sheet as and when
. they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;
{xx) According o the information and explanations given 1o us and based on owr
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required Lo
| spend any amount under CSE Acthivities;
l(wxi) The Company does not have any Indian subsidiary. Hence, requirements of

|_ elause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of aforesaid order is not applicable.
For Satinder Goyal & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No: 027334N

Shubhanshy Jain

(Partner)

Date : 08" June 2023 Membership No. : 541369

Place : Gurugram, Haryana UDIN : 23514369BGZHGK489]




ANNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred 1o in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of VDOIT
l'echnologies Private Limited for the year ended 31% March 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 20123 (“the Act™)

We have audited the mternal financial controls over fimancial reporiing of YDOIT
Technologies Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Auditl of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the *Guidance Mote™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating efTectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the saleguanding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frawds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to
the extent appheable to an audit of mtemal financial control. Those Standard: and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
awdit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
fingncial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
all matenal respects.

Our andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivencss.
Our awdit of internal financial conirols over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporling, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
mternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedureés selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fravd or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls svstem over financial
reporiing.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o
provide teasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles. A companv's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)} pertain to the maintenance
of rccords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary fo penmul preparation of Onancial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets thai could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becauze of the inherent limitations of internal financial conmtrols over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or frawd may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporling may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Satinder Goyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firnm's Regn. No: 027334

s

Shubhanshu Jain

(Partner)

Date : 08" June 2023 Membership No. : 541369

Place : Gurugram, Haryana LIDIN ; 23514369BGEHGR4891




%

; YATE LIMITED LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315t MARCH 2023
_ {Figures in INR)
- : Asat As ai
T NoleBe | masgeps | meszz |
A EQUITY & LIARILITIES
1 SHAREHOLDERS FLUMNINS
Share Capital 2 1 AX, CHHE 1,00 [HD
Bosorves & Surplus ) 3,35 20890 B 28, 04 060
236,29 850 .29, 6l
2 MON - CLHEENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Borrowings 4 - 2,26 |84
Deforred Tax Linbalites {net} - -
Crbrer Long Term Liabilities - -
Lang Term Provisians 5 13,246,791 -
13,26.79 12,26,784
3 CIHERENT LIABILITIES
lewde Pavahles f 141521 4% w40
Cihier Current Lishilsties 7 1405 R1ix MLEBA 3T
Slsoat Term Peowidons ] 74, 76,700 3,76, 2440
Q13704865 1.1 1,556
TOTAL | 44095727 2,34 01,741
B ASSETS
1 MNOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipmend and intangible sssets
Prapery, Plant and Fquipment & 42 O 0GT B.78.263
Iniangible asseds - -
Capital Work in progress = =
Mia- Current Invesiments {1 - -
Dieferred Tax Assets {nei) 11 4 6], 433 201,754
Laong femn loans and sdvarees - -
Ciber Bhm=Comment Assets 12 4483 752 -
9LA1LETS 399007
2 CURRENT ASSETS
Current Invesncni= = -
Inveaiorics . .
Trade Reccivahleos i3 | #5842 450 4,94 _Bok
Cash and Cash Eguivalens 14 1,000, 55 800 I.83,82 02
Shiont Term Loams smd Advences - =
Caber Cuarrent Agseis 15 1049 58T 34,23, 754
34851851 225017
TOTAL 44093727 134 01741
SHMNFICANT ADCTAPNITNG POLICTES 1
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-33
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{Figures in INR)

" Year ended Xear ended

. Fartienlars NateNo. | 31032003 31.03.2022
REVEMUE
Revenue from Operations (Met) 17 4,70, 23 873 i1,21,800657
Other Income 18 792303 1.50,265
Total Income (1) 4. 8715177 523 30922
EXPENSES
Emplovee Benefit Expenses e 1.83.34.103 1,58,38,358
Finance Cox=ls = =
Depreciation & Amortization Expense L 5.57.484 1,865,471
¢her Expenses 20 21,584,690 41,47.016
Total Expenscs (11) 1,10,76,277 301,71 845
Profit before excephional and caxtreordinary items and wax (1-1T) - 11 2,76, 38,500 L2, 59077
Esceptional items (I'V) - =
Profit before extraordmary ienss and tax (-1} - V 1,76,38,900 1,21.59.077
Extraordinary items { Y1} . -
Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 2,76,38,900 1.21,59.077
Tax Expense
Current Tax 413,711 30,776,290
Deferred Tax {Asset) | Liabiligy (40, TO0 (42150
Tax (Earher Years) - 206,100
Total Tax Expense 60730 317875
Profit for the yvear 2,06, 65,590 BES0,902
Eaming per Share (FY of Rs. 10/ each})
(1) Basic 2 066,59 RHE 09
{2} Dikuted 2,066.59 KR (0
SHENIFICANT ACCOUNITRG POLICIES I
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VDOIT TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED (NOW LIMITED |
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023
(Figures in INR)
- : Year gnched Year ended
: Ehtonm 31.03.2023 2022
CASH FLOW - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mt Profit before thx 2, 76,38, %0l 1,21.59.077
Aul justmemts :
M
= Deprecistion & Amdrtisation 557484 1 86471
Operating profit before working capital chamges 28196384 123455848
Change (n assets and labilities
il (Increase)’ Decrease in Tride Heceivahles (1,6347.591) f.410
i) (Inerease) Decrease in Other Current assets (43,23 833) (1794, 1 4%
i) Incresse (Decrease} in Trade Payahle 112,572 48,9
iv) Increase) {Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 00418 56,79.273
¥ Imcrease! (Decrease) in Ciber Current Liabilities {45 87 502) -
Met Adjustments (207 45,934 30,40,483.00
Cash genernted from/ (used in) operating sctivities 7450448 626051
Imcome Tax Fxpemnses F4,13. 711 JZBZ 390
Mat cash genernted from/ (nsed in) operating aclivities - {A) 36,737 130,03 641
CASH FLOW - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
i} Purchase of Property, Plant & Eguipments (39.75,555) (2.20.569)|
i) (Inereasc ) Decrease in Diher Mon Curread Asscls [44 83,751 -
[Net cash generated from/ (used jn) investing sctivities - (B) (§4,59,541) (2.20,569)
CASH FLOW - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
i} Increnses (Decrease] in Long Term Bomowings (12,26, 184) {9.00,000]
i} Increase/ (Decrease) in kong Term Provision 13.26.79] 5
Met cush generated from (used in) finsncing activities - () 1, IHLG0T (R T G TR
Mot Increased [Decrense) in Cash & Cash Equivalents { A=B+0) (2322247} 11883072
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginming of Year 1,23.82.103 00 034
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of Year 1,000,559 808 1,A3.82,102
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RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO ACCOUNTS
COMPANY INFORMATION
VDOIT Technologies Private Limited (now Limited) was incorporated on the Tenth day of March,
2015 in the state of Haryana, with an object of providing software related services. During the year an
application was filed with the Ministry of Company Affairs (MCAJ) on 16th March, 2023 for conversion
of company from private limited to public limited. MCA approved the conversion on 1 1th April, 2023,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis for preparation of finzncial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (a=z amended) and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The finencial statements are authorized by the Board of Direciors of the Company at their mecting held
as on 08 June 2023,

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional corrency of the
Company and the cumrency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Company operates.

Basiz of measurement
These Mmancinl iatements are prepared ander the historical cost convention unless otherwize indicated,
Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the company and normal time between acquisition of assets and
thedr realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12
maomths for the purpose of classification of its asseis and liabilities as current and non-current,

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
of the company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported balances of assets and
liahilities, disclosures of contingent aszets and habilities as &t the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include
provisions for doubtfiul debts, employee benefits, provisions for meome taxes, useful ife of depreciable
assets and others. '

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriale changes in estimaies are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumsiances surrounding the estimates. Changes in eslimates are reflected in the (fnancial stalements
in the pericd in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclozed in the notes
financial statements.




3. Property, Plant and Equipment’s

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses,
ifany. The cost of fived assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any
directly attributable expeaditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental
expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up o the date
the assct is ready for its intended use. Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an
item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalized and depreciated over the
useful life of the principal item of the relevant assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating 1o Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized oaly if such
expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed
stundard of performance.

4. Intangible Asscis

Iniangible assets are carried at cost incurred for acquiring the asset less amortization and impairment
losses, iFany. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing suthorities), and any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts
and rehates,

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benelits are expeocted to
arise from continued use of the asset. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asser,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

5 Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, I any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount
The reduction is treated as an Impairment Loss and is recognized in statement of profit and lnss. 1f m
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if previously assessed mmpairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected af the lower of recoverable amount and
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized.

6, Depreciation/ Amortizstion

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is
provided on written down value method over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 11 1o the Act or
a5 per technical assessment. .

= Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down value methad al the rates prescribed by
the schedule 11 of the Companics Act, 2013 and in the manncr as prescribed by it

Intangible assets arc amaortized over their respective individual estimated uscful life on written
down value basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the company for its use. The
estimated uscful life of an identifiable imangible asset is based on @ number of Factors including
the effects of obsolescence, etc. The amorstization method and useful lives are reviewed
periadically at end of each financial vear. _———

Pt ‘:ﬁﬂi’ﬂr}\.




7. Revenue Recognition

Sale of Service
Sale of service is recognised when camplete service is performed. Sales are stated net of returns, trade
discounts, and GST, Revenue from operations is accounted for on the basis of billings 1o consumers

Chher Income
Interest mcome is recognized on tme proportion basis taking inte account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.

4. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing eosts include interest; amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences
arising from foreign curency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
gost, Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition
ol qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan,
Borrowing costs, allocated to and ufiled for qualifying assets, pertaining fo the period from
commencement of activities relating o construction’ development of The qualifying assel up to the date
of capitalization of such asset s added o the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing cosis is
suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss duning extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted.

9. Emplovee Benefits

b -,
o b

Shart-term r:mp!z.rﬁ: benefits like salaries, wages, bonus and welfare expenses payvable whaolly within
twelve months of rendering the services are accrued in the vear in which the associated services ane
rendered by the emplovess.

Defined contribution plan:
The company has defined contribution schemes for post-employment benefits i the form of provident

fund (PF). Under the PF schemes, the company contributes to a government administered fund on behal £
of emplovees. The company has no further obligation beyond making the contribution. The Company's
coatributions to the above plans are charged 10 Profit and Loss AccounL

el henefit -

Gratuity

The company has an obligation towards gratuity. a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
emplovees, The Gratwity payvment plan provides for a lump sum pavment to the vested emplovees at
retirement, death, incapacitation while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
based on the respective employvee’s salary and tenore of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion
of five years of service.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valualion, performed by an
independent actuary, at cach balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method,

Leave Encashment

The liability of accomulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by
an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.




il Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expecied to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authonties, using the tax rates and tax laws thai have been cnacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. . The Company offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable rnight to set off the recognized amounts and where it
mtends either to settle on a net basis, or 10 realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax assets and liahilities are recognized for all timing differences.

Dreferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shoet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
ini the vears in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or scttbed. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax asscts and liabilitics is recognized as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is
recognized tothe extent that itis probable that fulure taxable peofit will be available against which such
deferred 1ax assets can be realieed. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that the related tax benetit wall be realized.

11. Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions inﬁr&ign currencies enterad into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the rates that closely approximate the mte at the date of
transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary 1iems at the Balnce Sheet date:

Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Company and its net
investment in non- integral forcign operations outstanding a1 the Balance Sheet date are restated at the
year-end rates.

In the case of integral operations, assets and liabilities (other than non-monetary items), are translated
al the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance sheet date. Non-monetary items are carried at historical
cost. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the vear.
Exchange differences ansing out of these translations are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Treatment of exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on seftlement/restaternent of short-term foreign corrency monetary nssels
and liabilities of the Company and its integral foreign operations are recognized as income or expense
in the Statement of Profit and Losgs, The exchange differences on restalement/setilement of loans to
non-integral foreign operations that are considered as net investment in such operations are accumulated
in a "Foreign cumrency translation reserve” until disposalirecovery of the net investment.

12. Governmeni granis and subsidics

Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditsons attached to the and the grants/ subsidy will be received. Government
grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
capital assets wre presenled by deducting them Fom the carrying value of the sssets,

Other government grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the periods necessary 1o match
them with the costs for which the i o compensate, on 4 systematic hasis.




13. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A Contingent liability is a possible obligation that anise from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
contral of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation. A Contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases whers there is o liability that cannot be measured relizbly. The Company does not
recognize & contingent libility but discloses it existence in the financial statements.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources m settlement 5 remote,
are not disclosed 05 contingent labilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statcments since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually cerain, then
the related asset is not 4 contingent assel and 15 recognised.

14. Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probahle that an outflow of respurces will be required o sedtle the oblipation in respect of which a
reliahle estimate can be made. Provisions made in terms of Accounting Standards 29 are not diseounted
to its present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to seftle the obligation, at
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current

mankgement estimates,
15, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shornt-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o
insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting shori-term cash
commitments.

16. Research and Developmeni Expenses

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charped to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Development
costs of products are also charged to the Statement of Profil and Loss unless a product’s technological
feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is capifahzed, The amount capitalized
comprises expenditure that can be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent hasis
to croating, producing and making the asset ready for its intended use. Fixed asscts utilized for rescarch
amd development are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Tangible
Fixed Assets and Intangible Assels,

17. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ ( loss) after tax for the year attributable
to equity sharcholders of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating the diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributabbe to equity shareholders and the weighted sverage number of shares cutstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of al]_dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as ﬁm&n period, unless they have boen issued at a lator date.
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SOTES 0N FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE

Mote 1 : Share Capital

Ml

MST MARCH 2023

_ [ Fipures in INK)
| Soad M March, 2923 Minrch, B =~ |
Pariicmbars Mumber of A M amihar ol
I msnl i Amouni

{(n) Authorised Capital
JEKHE]) Fauaty shares of Bs, 10 cach 400, () R INE (] 400 4, DML, DI
i1y Izl Subseribed wnd fully paid up
1EHE) Paquity shares of Ba, 10 cads LR L 1 b el 100 1,01, e

Raofur Moien below

(1) Thee Ciriwrpriny bz o elass of andinary Shimes heving a par vadog off 10 per Shire. Bach shareholder is digible b one vise per Share
hedd. Tm thee event of Liguidation, the aquisy (eafman’ sleschebdors ane eligible o neome e resilual assets of the compony afier
distribmtion of all Preferential smamins, im propoction B0 their sharcholding,

(b Bocodaltation of the shanes oulstnding 3l e beginning and o the end af the year

No. of Equity Shares
Particulurs Awal As st 1033002
31032013
Shares peitstanding of the beginning of the Year 100 1000
Shares ssuol during the Y oar il Ml
Shares: oesstancing of the end of the ¥ ear [ 14,0

{iii) Detnils of shures held by onch shirchodder Bolding more than $% sheces:

Axat 3] H_,Hh, 2y A af 3] March, 222
=% hadding in Mumber e % bolding in | ¥umber af shares
T A - thatclusof | sharesbeld | that class of held
shares shares
Marinder Kumar Kamra 4597 4,957 S0UAKE SN
Neetu Gupia 4598 4,958 30,00 EXTT)
Total TS 9,005 T [

{iv) Dharing lest 3 years imanedimsly precesding the balaes shect dike, oo Equity Shars e b ssoad puraimt i contmct]s) withoo
piymeent boing reockoed in assh, neither my bonus shares were Baued imm any shorss wers bought beck by e company.

vl Al shares are fully paid wp and there are o upakd call by sy direciorad’ offioen:.

) Mo Shares bave been foriesed by fhe company demmg the vear

{vii] Shares held by promoiers af the end of the year 5 2 under

SN, Promester MName Mo, sl Shares “I - % chamge durng the yesr
| [Fimrinder Kumur Komrs 3,997 35.97] (o0
2| Meetn Guptn 1,008 39.08] (0.00)
Tatal IS WS




NOTES O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2023

Note 3 | Reserves & Surphes (Figures in INR}
Particalar Asot Aa ay
{Surphus in stdement of profil & foss
Rubmee as at hepinming of dhe vear 12864 00 03 G
FProfit! {Loss) during the veir 2006, B3 B i T
Tuostzl 128,401 1
Note 4 ; Long Term Borrowings
Vartiesinr Asal Asal
SLUSIORY | 00 3222 0 |
U msecured
Loans froan Dirccors andl Relsed Partics - 2.6, 184
Tustal = 220,184
Note 51 l.llli' Term Frovisisn
Prrtieniar e s
M7
| rrmimigy 249, T3 -
Leave Encashiment TT.001 .
Tutal 13,26, 771 -
Node & Teade Pavable
Particular Anst Asat
A | s
Tolal outstanding ducs of mior, small aed medium cnserprses [ e 2T -
Total vutstmding ducs of creditors other thom msore, smoll sesd meclmm acrprsc: SHoGE] EER
Tostsl 161,521 48,040
Mate T ¢ Dther Current Liabilities
Particaler LEE As al
T Pavable R1.823 13,0214
PF Papyahle 1303 BT, (5D
LLaabiir Wetare Fiend Pavalde LR ] -
GET Payahle - 135,363
Expenses Fay bl 3. B4.776 2,29, 0010
Fayabbe o Emphovers 913,017 4352710
Tutal 1498816 ol 56,317
Maie B : Short Term Provibons
i FLLET A oal
Particalar
L0200 | Lm0 |
Ciraiiily SHEIR .
Lzve Encashmeni 4180 .
Income Tax 13,711 30, 76,20
Tkl T4, 70,704 Slh, 76,2




TOTFRH LR ELF L TEUEL & LT 8 = FES L L BhL LI EL 14 )| sTOjLaL] |
T ELE FEEETTAS TFEs HEGOE Bt = ML hE L AT % NSRS
TS IG5 TF - WFLT WEBTZ O I0E : T P TS SIIUE] |
. “LE 98 5V [Esdg] | IWa) a1 30d | Co0C Pl M % | GLOTEU 1L IESY | (sodmg %.m SUGHPRY | Lo0e FIF 10 2 5 SR
[E50 | puEls)
= AT EnAORARLY
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YPOIT TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED (NOW LIMITED §

NUTES O FINANCIE

AL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARCH 23815

Jate 12 3 Ok Nan Currant fses {Figures in INR)
Purticular As st Asat
ALLLII 1
Socunty Depeaii 1,50, 00 :
Fiuzd Deposds whh ks with more than 12 menths of mefumic 4303 757 .
[Tatal 481,752
Pioig 1 Tredle ogulvablcs
Perisasla Asak Az pp
SLES023 A3 gy |
Lissoural
- Crsih il e e 158 42408 4,04 50H
~Cona il e Dol e i
1AN 42 458 434,568
L= - A lowence for bad and Doabiil Debis X =
(Tatal 1AR. 2245 PRI
Trade Kecefvabler Ageing Sehadule (F¥ 2012-25)
Fartioulirs Lt 3 Thutsiaiding from due dote of paysaent us undor
Lass than 6 momiks | & monihs - | yesr il years 1.0 years Mare than 3 years [ Totul

i1k Uniispised Trisde Pevanbles - considered good

fid).950

S T

[ (1) Undispesed |mde Recervaliles - comsiderss doubifil
iiif s Trads Boanatbles - oonsidersd

| L1v} D puds] Trde Rasenndhlis - aomidened doshifil

Trady Becehabler Apeing Schedule (FY 20028

Parisoulors

THItSIRD AN Trom 0% GuTe ol payaseni & Unair

& manihs - 1 year

1= yeurs

31 yimrs

am 3 years | Toeal

—

Trafe Receivehies - cnsideral

12321

]
[ 11y Unedsepustit Troafc Roceivables - comsidnad duubtiul

_.mm_ WH pind Trade Recesypbies - cors g

Liv) Pt Trado Hiosy phies - comsicersd doutful




YDOIT TECHNOLOCIES PRIVATE LIMITED (NOW LIMITED )
NOTES-ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE Y EAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023

Note I4; Cash & Cash Equivalents (Figures in INR)
Particular As at As at
SLO3 IS S103. 2002 2
Cash on harsd (A= certified by the Management) L 25444 04,547
Badangs with Banks
= [ Curnent seeounts B7.34.365 1.75.87.555
= In Depogits accounts 1200000 T00.000
Tuotal 1,80 50 B 1,83 82 102
Farticulnr As Al Ak ail
Balinee with Governmenit A othorites 71,52 082 33.BE. 507
Advance to Emplovess - 2,040,000
[nterest Aceroed but non duae 43,545 31247
Advance o Supphers 3,060 -
FOher Advamce 150,000 -
Tatal 79,49, 587 36,25,754

a. Contingent Liobilities : WIL

b Comumitmenis : NIL




YDOIT TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED (NOW LIMITED )

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2023

Mote No, 17 Revenue (rom operations (Figures in INR)
Particalar Year ended Year ended
S1.03.2023 31032022
Turnover from Sale of Services
- Sofiware support scrvices - Domestic TT.R2.929 1,26, 56,624
- S fware support sery joes - Export 401,539 G4 1,95 44,033
Total revenue from operations 4, 79,22 873 3,21 80,657 |
NNoig Ne. 13 ;- Other lacoms
Farticular Year ended Year ended
31022021
Interest from Banks 2,755,042 1,373,865
[mierest on [T Refund 13.665 1 6, 40
Exchange Fluctuation 435519 -
(dher Income il (TR -
Total Criher Income 192,303 1,50,265
G .. v
Farticalar Year ended Yeurended
]
Salary & Wages 1,62,17.49] 1,525,990
SiafT Welfore J-?:-;pmn:. 35,1 Wk 340,597
Conftributien 10 Provident and (vher funds 4.29.050 2.37.762
Cirnturty 13,028,560 -
Leave Encashim ent Bl 22]
Labour Welfore Fund 30 gay
Bonus 232,176 -
Total 1,83.34,003 1,58,38,158
e 20} :- Other Ex
Particular Y ear ended ¥ear ended
31.03.2027
Auditors’ Remuperation 180,000 30,000
Aceouniing Charges 1,00, 000 6,000
Bank Charges 1,09, 345 52613
Business Licenses and website Charges 1,659,043 115,163
Business Promotion Expenses 20,047 4, 77018
Computer and Internet 13,144 24088
Conveyance Expenses 50,160 4,74,103
Diwali Expenses - 19,909
Exchange Fluctuation - 4, 16978
Insurance Expenses 17,376 41,312
Interest on lnsome Tox and TDS a9 319 47,736
Mise. Exp. 41,918 20,5449
Ortfice Exp. a0 S04 3,77 6009
Cfice Rent 940, (10 | 6,667
Printing & Stationery 1573 108,240
Professional and Technical Charges 520,000 §3,54,089
Office Maintenance 62 858 4,880
Software Expenses 19,494 n
Telephone Expenses 24,543 27,188
Traveling Expenses 4,95 068 .70, 485
Vcehicle Running & Maintenance 37,399
Total P 4147016

W D 99 455
21,584,690
UE" 1|: Sl
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023

20, Dxiring: e year, the company deckded 10 go public with an Initial Pubic Offer {IPOY, For il purposs, some consulns
{prefizsomals wera hired. The company needsio be o Limiled company o bring an [PC. Heace, sn application wes filed wiih ihe
Minisry of Company Affairs (MCA) on 166 March, 2023 for converdon of company from privats imited o public Tmnited, MCA
approved the conversion on iy Apeil, 3025,

X To capand the hugness activities of the compary, dunng the year, nson Gth February 20273 the vompasy moerponaicd o subsd ey
VIIT U5, LLC in the Uniled Stntes of America with £0% ownership. However, there was o investment by the company «ll
FTA3.202 i the newly mcorpornied subsidiary . The sabsidiary alay did mot start sny aperagioins tll 31.03.2023. Thers is no revenue’
expenditure in sabsidiary company exoept company incaporation ex penses of 51,175 (Ra. 96,597}

23, Balnnce shown under the besding Trade Paysbles, Trade Reosivables, ather current Tiabilithes and other carrent assets ars gshject 1o
oo fimmatinna.

24, In the opinsan of direciors, sl sssets sated othorwiss have a value on reafization in the ordinary course of husness, ot leaa equal o
the amounts at which these are sated and that provishen for depreciation and for ll knewn labiliies i sdequate and considened
remonabh.

15, PFayment Lo Aafitors i Figures n 1INR)
Yiear Ended Year Ended

Fartkuhn 318t March 2023 $1s1 March 2022
Statatory Auwdit Fees 1,560,000 50,00
Total 1,560,000 30,000
2. D¥sclesmres as per Accounting Stambard-18 on “ Beksied Pariy Disclosures'

A - Related Parties Mame of Related Parties

a) Tedding Compony MIL

b Subsidiory Compasy - WVDaIT L5, LLC

= W, Nprinder Eumar Kamra, Managing Direcior

= Mrs, Mestu Gupia, Direcior

= Mra Dhamini Chhabra, Diecor

= Wr, Kamal Gakall, Direcior

= Mr. Manu Chopra, Direcior

= Mra Vimita Bansal, Chiel Financial 0o {fom
04,010,2023)

= Mry. Shilpa, Company Secratary {from 23,00 2023

ch Key Mangement Personnel :

) Relativies of Key Mangement Persomnel with whom company have K =
frapsaciions daring cumrent year | = hr. Kashmiri Lal Esamara

¢ Names of The TompanicsTirm m which Direciors Eey Managerial

Persommel howe Significant influence: L.
B - Tramaethn with Relnted Partics 31:? [" ﬂn :dﬁrﬂlﬂ
1} Remumeration
= Mir. Marinder Kumor Kumra 35 TR AL 4197 FTh
- Mirs. Meet Uspia 297K, 400 3496270 |
= Mrs Vinlea Bassal 138381 -
- Mrs Shilys 1,128 -
23 (Mher Serviies
|= Mr. Kashieiri Lal Kzmin I, i, ) E kR
3) Rent
= M= Mgt Gupka il I "
: m
= Mr. Marinder Kumar Kamm - 4 (W) o
= Mrs. Niglu (upls & |2 (WO
i
- Mr. Narindes Kumur Ksma (Closing Balance - NIL) 646143 3 5000
- Mrrs. Meetu Gupla (Closmg Balance - HIL) 579 161 225000

577 “‘%
* (N i E




ROTES OM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE Y EAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023

4. Ietwils of prioe perisad expendifures

(Fignres i IR
Vear Ended Year Ended
EiRTTRca 30t March 2023 31 st March 2022
Ly 10,73, 34k 1 -
Leave Encashment 41,953 -
Labstur Welare Fond 0,076 a
Total 11,34,329 -
29 Farmings Per Share
) Year Ended Year Ended
i ol 3ist March 2023 st Mavch 20022
| Prrofit after tax 206,635, 8H) BEED 02
Weighted Average Mo, of equity shares |1y, M) 115, 0
Face Yolie per Share 14l ]
Basic EFS £, e 59 iR 0
Malutes EFE 2, . 59 LhE
A0 Foreign Cerrency Karnings and Expenditares
Vear Ended Yewr Ended
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% SATINDER GOYAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of VDOUIT Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of VIDOIT Technologies
Private Limited (“the holding Company™) and its subsidiary (the holding company and iis
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated
Cash Flow Btatement for the year then ended, and consolidated notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™),

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepied in India, of the consolidated swte of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in sccordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Respensibilities for the Audit of consolidated financial statements™ section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the andit evidence
we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company®s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and lair view of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial
performance, and consolidated cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act.

respective hoard of directors of the entities included in the group are responsible for
ance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
ing of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
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irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due 10 fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the
entities included in the group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
tor cease the operations, or has no realistic altenative but to do so.

The respective hoard of directors of the eniities included in the group ar: responsible for
aversecing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated firancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, anul 10
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an andit conducted in aceordance with SAs will always
detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fnancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedure responsive 10 those
risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufTicient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from ciror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override o internal control.

e Ohtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit 0 order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section
143(3%i) of the Acl. we arc also responsible for expressing our opimon on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectivencss of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting cstimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

1 Gﬂf&.-'¢ exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
D?Q‘ S Group o continue a5 a going coneern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
* 4 | we are required to draw attention m our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
5

f financial statement or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modity our opinion. Our

v A




conclusions are hased on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s
report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the company to cease fo
r cONLINUS 85 8 gOIng CONCer.

« Pvaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consclidated hnancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentabion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
entities included in the consolidated linancial statements of which we are independent auditors
regarding, among other marters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
pudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
and where applicable, related safeguands,

Other Matters

We did not audit the hnancial statements of foreign subsidiary named as VDoll US, LLC
included in consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
NIL, total revenoe of NIL, total profit/ (loss) after tax of Ra. (96.5%97) for the yvear ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The duly zigned aforesaid financial
statement furnished to us by the management is unaudited being a newly incorporated
company with #ero operations as on 31 March 2023. Our opinion on the consolidated
nancial statement is for those entities for which we are statutory auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our andit.

b} In our opinion, proper beoks of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company 50 far as il appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

On the basis of the writien representafions received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31* March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the




Holding Company, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31% March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Acl.

£} With respect to the adequacy of the mternal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over

financial reporting.

g) With respeet to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company {o its directors during the year 1s in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respeet to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and o
the best of our information and according o the explanations given 1o us

a) The Group did not have any pending liigations
b) The Group did not have any long term contracis including derivative contracts.

¢) During the year, the company was not liable to transfer any amount to the Investor
Edueation and Protection Fund.

d) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
o believe that the representations/disclosures under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule
11{e} contain any material mis-statement. (Refer Mote No. 26 to the financial
statcmenis )

e) The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear.

For Satinder Goyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No: 027334N

s

st

Shubhanshu Jain

{Partner)

Dhate : 08" June 2023 Membership No. : 541369

Place : Gurogram, Haryana LIDIN : 23541 369BGAHGLY3 24



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of ¥YDOIT
Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 317 March 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls ever Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have gudited the internal fnancial controls over [inancial reporting of YDOIT
Technologies Private Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Holding Company™) as of
March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Haolding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the mternal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance MNate on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting sseed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Mote™). These responsibilities
mclude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of s business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the satepuarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frawds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's intemnal financial
eontrols over financial reporting based on owr audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, lo the extent applicable to an awdit of internal financial control. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal fnancial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatmg effectiveness.
Our audit of internal fnancial controls over fnancial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
iniernal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the Anancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our andit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

'.I--\.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
ol records that, in rcasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the tranmsactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal ransactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unautherized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the inancial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inberent limitations of internal financial controls over finangal reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management, ovemide of controls, material
misstatements doe o emor or s may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial conitrols over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
madequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deterioraie.

Opinion

In pur opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given t us,
and for foreign subsidiary as referred 1o in Other Matters paragraph above, the Holding
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, bused on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note,

For Satinder Goyal & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Fim's Regn., No: 027334N

Shubhanshu Jain
j { Partner)
Date ; 0™ June 2023 Membership No, : 541369
Place : Guragram, Haryana LIDIN : 2354 1369BGEHGLY53 24



SUMMARY OF SICGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

COMPANY INFORMATION

VDOIT Technologies Private Limited (now Limited) was incorporated on the Tenth day of March,
2015 in the state of Haryana, with an object of providing software related services. During the year an
application was filed with the Ministry of Com pasry Affairs (MCA)on 16th March, 20123 for conversion
of company from private limited to public limited. MCA approved the conversion on [ 1th April, 2023.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN LIC
1. Basis for preparation of inancial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India {Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 20013,

The consolidated financial statements consist of financial statements of VDXOIT Technologies Private
Limited {now Limited) (parent company) and VDol T US, LLC (foreign company). Financial statements
of foreign subsidiary have been recasted for the purpose of consolidation,

The name of subsidiary company included in consolidation and parent company's holding therein is as
under:-

_ﬂh;'iliilr}fCnmmjf‘,ﬁ:u_-ﬁ_ﬁg.p[ﬁmrpnmﬂm Percentage nrluldﬁﬁ'ﬁ-ﬁ} |

.....

VDolT US, LLC SA &0

The financial stitements are authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held
as on 08" June 2023,

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which i the functional currency of the
Company and the cumency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Basiz of measurcment

These financial stdements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

Orperating Cycle

Based on the nature of activitics of the company and normal time between acquisition of asscts and
their realisation in cush or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilitics as current and non-current,

2. Use of Estimeates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
of the company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported balances of assets and
liahilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of financial statemenis and the
reporied amount of revenues and expenses during the vear. Examples ol such estimates include




provisions for doubtful debts, emploves benefits, provisions for mcome taxes, useful life of deprociable
assots and others.

Accounting estinsates could change from pericd o period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes sware of changes in
circumstances surmounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the pertod in which changes are made and, if matenial, their effects are disclosed in the notes o
financial siatements.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment’s

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
it any. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any
import duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax awthorsties), any
direeily atiributable expenditure on making the asset rendy for s intended wse, other meidental
expensed and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date
the asset is ready for its intended use. Machinery sparcs which can be used only in comnection with an
item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irmegular are capitalized and depreciated over the
useful life of the principal item of the relevant assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating 1o Property, Plamt and Equipment is capitalized only if such
expenditure results m an increase m the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance,

4. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost incorred for acquiring the assel less amortization and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authonities), and any directly

atiributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any frade discounis
and rebates.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected ©
arise from continued use of the assel. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible assel,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset, arc
recogmized n the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

5 Impairment of Assets

The company assesses al each balance sheet date whether there 15 any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, If
such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1o which the
aszet belongs iz less than i carrving amount, the carrying amount i reduced &0 its recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an Impairment Loss and & recognized in statement of profit and loss. 1Fn
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if previcusly assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected ot the lower of recoverable amount and
the camrying amount that would have been determined had no impainment loss been recognized.

6. Depreciation’ Amortization
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over s useful life and is

provided an written down value method over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Act or
as per technical assessment.




- Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down value method at the rates prescribed by
_the schedule 11 of the Companics Act, 2013 and in the manner as prescribed by it.

- Intangible assets are amontized over their respective individual estimated useful life on written
down value basis, commencing from the date the asset is available @ the company for s use. The
estimated useful fife of an identifiable intangible asset is based on & number of factors including
the cffects of ohsolescence, elc. The amortrzation method and wseful lives are reviewed
penindically at end of each financial year.

7. Revenue Recognition

Bale of Service
Sale of service 15 recognised when complete service 15 performed. Sales are stated net of retums, trade
digcounts, and GET, Revenue from operations 15 accounied for on the basis of billings to consumers.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive is established.

8. Borrowing Cosi

Bomrowimmg costs inchude interest; amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adustment to the interest
cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related 1o the acquisition
of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan.
Borowing costs, allocated to and utilized for gualifving assets. pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to constroction’ development of the qualifying nsset up to the date
of capitalization of such asset is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrewing costs is
suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted.

¥. Employce Benefits

Shori=term emploves beneliis:
Short-term employee benefits like salaries, wages, bonus and welfare expenses payable wholly within

twelve months of rendering the services are acerued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the emplovees.

Defined contribution plan:
The company has defined contribution schemes for pest-cmployment bencfits in the form of provident

fund (PF). Uinder the PF schemes. the company contributes to a government administered fund on behalf
of employees. The company has no further obligation beyond meking the contribution. The Company's
contributions Lo the above plans are charped to Profit and Loss Account.

{2 ratn

The company has an obligation lowards gratity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees, The Gratuity payvment plan provides for a lump sum payment to the vested emplovees al
retirement, death, meapacitation while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion
of five years of service.




Liabilitics with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actwanial valuation, performed by an
medependent actuary, al cach balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

Leave Encashmeni

The Bability of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by
an independent actuary ot each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

1. Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have boon enactod or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. . The Company offsets current tax asscts and current
tax habilities, where it has a legally enforceable right fo set of the recognized amounts and where it
intends either to settle on a nel basis, or (o realize the asset amd settle the liability simulianeousty

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all timing differences.

Deferred imcome tax assets and habilities are measured using 1ax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and labilities is recognized as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date, A deferred income tax asset is
recogmized 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

11, Foreign Currency Translation

Initial Recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of
Iransaction.

Measurement of foreign CUFTENCY Monetary iterns at the Balance Sheet date:

Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Company and iz net
mvestment in non- integral foreign operations outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated @t the
year-end rates,

In the cnge of integral operations, assets and habilities (other than non-monetary items), are translafed
at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance sheet date. Non-monetary items are carried at historical
cost, Revenue and expenses are translated ot the average exchange rates prevailing during the year.
Exchange differcnces anising out of these translations are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Treatment of exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on selllement'restatement of short-term forcign currency monetary assets
and liahilities of the Company and its integral foreign operations are recognized as INCOMe OT EXpens:
n the Statement of Profit and Loss, The exchange differences on restatementisettlement of loans to
non-wntegral foreign operations that are considered as net investment in such operations are accumulated
m & "Foreign currency translation reserve” until disposalfrecovery of the net investment.




12. Government grants and subsidies

CGiovernment grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions anached o the and the grants' subsidy will be received. Government
grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
capital assets are presented by deducting them from the carrving value of the assets.

(xther government grants and subsidies are recopnized as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

13. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A Contingent hability 15 a possible oblipation that arise from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence o non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
gonirol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A Contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent ability bot discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Claims against the Company where the pessibility of amy outflow of resources in settlement is remote,
are nol disclosed as contingent liabilitics,

Contingent assels are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income iz virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised,

14. Provisions

A provision is recognieed when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
iz probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o setile the obligation in respect of which o
reliable estimate can be made, Provisions made in terms of Accounting Standards 29 are not discounted
to its present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation, at
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
mandgement estimates.

15 Cash and cash equivalemis

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liguid
invesiments thai are readilv conwvertible milo known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o
insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting shor-term cash
cOmmitments.

15. Research and Development Expenses

Revenuwe expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Staternent of Profit and Loss. Development
costs of products are also charged o the Stalement of Profit and Loss unless a product”s teclmological
feasibility has boen established, in which case such expenditure is capitalized, The amount capitalized
comprises expenditure that can be directly atiributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
o creating, producing and making the asset ready for its intended use. Fixed assets utilized for research
and development are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Tangible
Fived Assets and [ntangible Assets.




16. Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share ane calculsted by dividing the net profit’ (loss) afler tax for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding

during the year.

For the purpose of calculating the diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable 1o equity shareholders and the weighted sverage number of shares oulstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as al beeinning of the period, unbess they have been issved at a later date.
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Wﬁm LIMITED (NOW LINITED )
i R ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

{Figures in INR)
Year ended Year ended

v NoteNo.| 31032033 | jgen |
REVENUE
Revense from Operations (Mef) [ 4,79, 22 873 3.21.80,657
Ciher Income i7 7,972,303 150,265
Total lneome (1) 4,87, 15177 3.33.30,%33
EXPENSES
Emploves Benefit Expenses I 183,534,103 1,58 38,358
Fimance Costs - -
Depreciation & Amontization Expense g 257484 [B6 471
(Hher Expenses I 2281286 4147016
Total Expenses (11} 2,11,73,873 201,711,845
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (1-11) - 111 2.75.42.303 1.21,59877
Exceptional tems (I1V) - -
Profin before extraordmary ems and tax (TI-IV) -V 27542303 1.21,59.077
Extraordinary ilems (V1) - .
Profit Before Tax (V-V} TR A2 303 12150077
Tux Expense
Cherrent Tax TA,89.401 30,76.250
Deferred Tax { Asset) / Liabilin (440700 {4215
Tox ( Enrtier Y eara) - 206, 100
Total Tas Expense i), 48, T IXTR17S8
Profit for the year 2S935, 60% BY, 80902
Share of minority interest in profiv’ {los) [19,319) -
Profit for the year available for majerily sharebolders 21,172,922 RE.R0. 002
Earning per Share (FV of Bs. 10/~ cach)
{1} Basic 2061 BEE.OD
{27 Drilated 206129 KRR
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{ Figuires in INR)
Particalar Year enched Year ended
- J1.083.2003 ,!i.ﬂ.i-.]l_}g
CASH FLOW - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mt Prodil Before @ 27542303 b1 55077
Adjusiments :
Al
= Depreciation & Amortisation 557484 186471
Operating profit before working capital changes 1099, 78T 1,23 45 54%
Chunpe in asiels and Habilities
il {lncrépse) Decrease in Trode Receivasies [1.6347 501 A.A410
i) (Increase) Decrense in Other Current assets {43.73,213) {17.94.149)
i) Increwse/ (Decrease) in Tde Payable L2572 LR
iv)  Inercase! { Decreuse) in Short Term Provisions 43,76, 104 S 79 27T
v} Incrense! (Decrease) in Ckher Current [isbilitics 44,10 e | -
Net Adjustments (2,06,73,649) 3048717
‘ash generated froed (used in) operating activities 426,118 1,62 BG4S
Income Tax Experses 731,559,401 R
MNet cash penerated feom! (nsed b apeerating methyifies - (A) 36,77 1503645
CASH FLOW - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1) Purchase of Property, Plane & Egquipmenis (39,73 KRR (el | B
i} (Incrense) Decrease in Other Mon Current Asscts [44,83,753) .
Met eash geoerated from! {wsed in) imvestEng notivities - (B) (84,50, 641 (220565
CASH FLOW - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1} Increase! (Degecase) in Long Term Bommowings (12,26, 184) {500
it} Inercase’ {Decrease] in bng Term Provision 13.26,791 =
Mol cash generated from (msed in) lipaneing setivities - () 1,607 [N T
el Increase | Decrease) in Cash & Cash Egaivalents {A+B+C) (B3.22.297)| [REE 2R
Cish and eash equivalents at ihe beginning of Year 183,82 1k il H 30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of Year T, IH0, 30, R0H 123,82 104
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNITNG POLICIES I
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-28
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NOTES O/ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ERDED 315T MARCT D023
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023

Node 3 ; Reverves & Surplis (Figurms in INR)
Asat Asnt
Particalar
: ; SLOS2NRF | 00 JLOGSEAT 0
{Gurplys in sapement of profd & ks
Faalance as o beginming of the yvear 128540010 MR
Profit! (Loss) during the visr 2060 972 8 B0O02
Twtal 5.4, 76,923 12064, 00
Moted ; [deTn'm H-nmi.rr&l
Adal Aiat
Particular
dLiR0ES | 20 O SLUSGURE
Unsecure
Louna T Direcioss ond Belnied Parties - 12.26. |84
Tuoial = 12,26, 184
Maote 5 1 Long Term Provisiom
; A at Asat
Cirmbaiiy 1249750 -
Lemee Encashimenl TTAH
Tinal 13,26,701
Mot b ¢ Trade Favahle
Particakir | Asxal Al
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Tritzl 161,521 4%, 940
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VINOLT HNOL VAT !
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2023
iFigures in INR)
Particular As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Difference | Assel Difference Aspt!
{Liahility) (Linhility }
Timing Differences
A, Depreciation
Writen Down Value of fixed aseis a5 per [ncome Tax Act 45,12 598 0,58 086
Written Down Value of fined assets a3 per Companies Act 42,96 667 2.7%.2a3
Difference 215031 54,346 19523 20,754
B. Provision for Gramity/Leave Encashment/Bonus/Labour Welfars Fund cte. 16,17.565 407,109 - -
Total 18.55.496 401455 19,823 20,754




YIONT TECHNOLOGLES PRIVATE LIMITED (NOW LIMITED |

HOTES ON CONSHLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T MARCH 2023

S b e R
Partioular As at Asat
LU0 L3NS
Secunly Deposs 180,000
Fived Doposits with banks with moge than 12 monils of maturiy 43,034,752
e TR
Lote LLi Trade Hecdyaples
Farticslar Asal Asat
LA ALAENEE |
Uizgamred
- Comeidered Good 1,6B AL 45K 434 368
= Cersiderad Doubtfol - i
T 42 A% 4.5 A
Lesa : Allow snes for bad amd Doubaful Db L -
[Total LA 4SS
Truide Recefvobiler Agedmg Schodule {FT 2025240
I Ouistanding frem due dote of paymest s wnder
LLess than 6 months | & months - I vear 1-1 yeary -3 vimir Mure has 3 vears | Toinl
[} Uelisporied Tracle Roceivable: - considensd 1,6 0 499 633,539 - = 1.AE A2 A58
{ii) Undespoted Trade Bereivables - considered dobital : , —x)
(i} Drsgred Trade Beceivalies - considered goced :
{iv} Drimprrend Trode Receivilies - comslilered desbifil
Trala Ravodoallesr Apsing Sohoduls (FY 2021220
Parthenilars Ctstnmding from dus date of paymsent os wnder
Less thom 6 menths | 6 momtha - 1 year I-1 veaty More thon 3 venrs | Tuoial
£ Lndispuned Trabke Ressivalile: - vorsidin] i 12,043 11,231 . 4.5 B4E

_“ iz} Lindispu ted Trade Mecgivanles - conmiered doustul
[




Note 13 ; Cash & Cash Fguivalenis {Figures in INK)

Particular Asal Az ai

SLO3Z02Y 0 | 00 FL632022 0 |
Cash om hand { As certified by the Management) 125,444 94547
« In Clarrent agcoumnts B7.34,305 |.75.87.555
« I Drepisils acoounts AL ERE L TR
Todal VoI5 5 LAIRZ102
14 : &r A

Particular Asai As sl
Malance with Covermimend A atharites 71,5282 3388507
Advance fix Emphoyess - 2000 0
Tnterest Accrued bl not due 43,545 3T
Advance iy Suppliers 3,900 -
Other Advance 7,540, MM -
Total 79,49, 587 3625754

a Comingeint Linbiligies  SIL

b, Commsgments : MIL




NOTES ON CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENTREDR JIST MARCH 2023

. i iFigures in INR)
PFarticular ﬁﬁl Xear endled
1
Tamover frovm Sale of Services
- Boftware sappart serv o - Derfuesles 1753,k 126,36 514
- Soliw e 48 vies = Expon d.UII'.'-I‘?I':H-ﬂ I;_.\‘.'i.ini.r[_r';'-él__
Total revenms from operathans 4,79 33 §T3
I T = i _
Particular Near pmiled
Imlcrost from Bk 275043 133303
Iwigred nm T Nefwnid [ERES] L6 A0
Fxchange Fumnanon 4,35 514 :
ther Incisme &R OTH -
[Total Other Tncome 792303 180,58 |
M n. )
Particular Near ended
Salary & Wases 142,17 490 1 5235859
Stadf 'Weffare Expenses 35, 1K1 3 AD5LT
Coetribabon 1o Frovident and O2her Tunds a2 1500 237,763
iratuity 13,08, 564 :
Lemre Fnceshmesi R1.221 "
Lahosur Weklare Fund EL L -
| Horus 232976 -
Total 143,354,113 158,38, 350 |
L
Prrticular Year ended Yenr ended
Audsiods’ Rommner il 180,000 MO0
Aocinting Charges | Ak AR TR
[Hank Charges 1 e %8 12613
Hiegmess Licensess sl webiils Dl 158 4187 | B& 0%
Husmes Priomodion Fxpenses e E 1T7T21%
Compater and Inieinet 13,044 34 08%
Cnaveyance Expenses S0, 1 66 474,104
[ivwali Exponscs . 35904
Exchnnge Flisctution - 41697k
Insurence Expenses 1757 41,312
Imierest om Dadom: Tax and TDE H 310 47 T3k
belise, Fup 41918 T 540
Oifioc Exp ol L 3,77 A4
DiMze Rel annn0 |96 467
Frimtimp & Sintionery 357 108 240
Mrolezaonal md Technical Charges o 6 50T 1354 089
Cfice hainicnmn e 42 K58 G BRA
Sofwane Uxpenses 10 40 -
Telephane Expuenss 24 543 27058
Fraveling Expenses 4 95 (In% | T 4as
Vighicle Remning & Maintesanom ke 37304
f |E 12.81.2H6 AL ATHLE




XML TECHNOLOGLES FRIVATE LIMITED (SOW LIMITED |
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2023

A0 Durng the wear, the company denided to go puhls: wath an Instisd Puhlic Offer (TP For the pamaose. some consalbnts fprofessonals
« weee hoed. The company needs & bea Lendsd company o bomg s 1700 Fence, &0 appdeation was Tlad with e Mo ey oF Cosi pasy
AlTaes (MICA T on Foih March, 2023 Foe conyerakon of compay from pravets Mesited in publie leened. MICA approsed the convérsin

en | heh April, 2023

21 Ralanice s usder s hending Tde Pavahles, Trile FPecewables odher curremt hahiliies nnd ot curmess esels are subjeo o

snndrmatcn

11 In the epimion of dereccors, sl assers duted otherwise Bave s value on reaheation mthe ordnary course of husines, of least equal o
e amoanis ot which these are saied snd that proyvsios for depresiahion and for ol known lmbilites s odequate and commdered

Iexwnahbe
LY. Pavmeni o Aoditers {FEures in INH)
Pariledh ¥ear Ewded Wear Ended

Jist March 2023 N st March 2032
Sany Audil Fees 1,A0,000 30,000
Toasl 180,000 0,000 |
14, Dischnsnres as per Acrauntiog Srasdurd-18 pn “Relnied Prrty Disclosores'
A = Relnied Farties Mame of Helated Farties
a] Tolding Company ML
B Subselisry Company VLT LS L1C

o] Kev Mmpenen Personinel

= M. Marinder Kumor Kamin, Managing Daector

- bl Meet Giapin, [hireciar

= s Dhaman Chhaben, Direcior

« M Kamal Gulab, Dhrecios

- M Manu Chopr, Direcior

= M. Vimiin Bansal, Chiel’ Faamoul OfGcer [from
D401 2025

dl l‘.rll.n'ﬂn-‘l'irr Pelompement I-"nrl:mmﬂ with whom company hewve
ramstion i dormy currenl yvear

« Ml HhE fumEni Ean:r!lEE !l:mm 2E00. X023y

- Wir Balvauiri Cal Kamea

=1 Hemes o (ho Lompanes T in which THIEones Rey WMeagerial

Poaspmrd have Signafeesnd influenco w1l
: Year Eniled wenr Endied

I = Trenssctien with Helnted Paries $iar Marey 223 S1sd March 2022

1) Remmuperaisen

- Blr. Marmde Kumar Kamm 35,78.400 4157276
= Blrs. Pein lifI'UEl.'.l. 2% THADD 3 .50 27
- Bdrs. Winila Dansl i&'*l "

- Plra. Shiipn kL3R E

I Diher Services

- Mir Kshenin Lal Kamra 11 M) 10,4110 |
&) Kenl

= Prs, Mo Gupia Sl M =

ekl

= Pr, Marnder Kimar Eamsia - & D0 ann
- Prs, Meetn Giupta - 1200000
- Mr. Marnder Kumar K (Closng Halnee - HIL) 4643 S0
= Mira Meetu (iupta I:I.'.'I.m:ll Bukuies: = HIL) 03461 T2 30000
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HOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS FUR THE YEAR EXDED J18T MA

IROCH T3

- L~ Earnimgs Per Siare
Year Laaled Year Esled
Partbralurs st Mareh 2023 31at Miarch 2632
Prafit adter tax 2,05 53603 HE k0 902
_wﬂlmdﬁ.urngbﬁu of ajaity s 101011k LRI}
Fate: Value per Share 1 10
Harsse EFS 2015938 A8 9
Drilutes [P% 2055 30 AER.0D

2ir Mo Funds have boen mlvanced o nsnod or ivvesid (ether from bocroweed Tunids oo any eiher sursss or kind of finds) by the
company i e ang athet perssa(E) or eetity(ios), inchiding foreagn eomities | ‘mienmedisries”) with the andersanding, whether reoorded
in writmg ar atherwise, that the intermeliony shall leod or mvest m party identified By or om behal o the Company §Ulimate
Bemeficianies). The Campany has it received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Pariy) wiih the undersimding that the company shall
whilher, directly or mdirzetly lend or invesd in ather persons or etines identified by or on bebalf of duw Company {"Uliimate
Bieneficiaries”| or provide any gearpsies, seunity of the bee on behsf of the Ukimnle Beneficary

I7. Thez figiares For the peevious yéar hove been regrouped, rewarked, reprranged and rechsified wherever secesany in msake them

codpamltie i thiet: 0 i currenl yem
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. YDOTUTECHNGLOGEES PRIVATE LIMITED INOW LIMITED )
NOTES ON CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARCH 2023

(Fizures in INR)
Mote Na, 28 - Ratios
As at 31 March, | Asat 31 March,
. 2023 1021
{A) [Carrent Ratio s 4
- Mumraior - Current Assets J4B.51.853.55 22502, 7T34.20
- Dienominator Cument Lishilities 92003279 92,11,550,31
Change is due o incregse in trade receivables
(B [Idebt - Equity Ratio (A) - R
- Mumeraor - Debit - 1226, 184,00
- Dienorminaior
Equiiy 0,000, Cofh G} -
Reserves & Surplus I M. Te 22 8] 1,286, 000,52
Total Equity 355,70 520 01 1, 28.64,0000.52
Change Is doe to repayment of e
(T} | Drebt Service Coverage Ratio {B) = lina7
< Mumermior - ERITTIA 2ED 90 THT 18 1.13.45.5497.52
= Dusnerrminabir
Principal Loms = 1236, 184,00
Total Loan Lisbilty . 12,26, 184.00
Chaonge is due to repavment of dish
{3} |Return an Eqguity Ratio 01,300 LS
= Mumersior - Profi aller ax 206,112,922 24 HH B8] 52
= [euminagor
Eiquity 1, 0, 0 11, E0040, L
Reserves & Surplas 3,34, Th 922 R I 2844000 52
Tatal Equity 335,76, 921,81 124964 00052
(E} | Inventory Tomover Ratio MA NA
= Mumeraier = Consumption of provisions, beverages and others A WA
« [renomimator = A verage mventory MA P
{F} | Traide receivalrle lirmoyver natio (days) i I
= Mumeraor - Turmover 4,19 12 81344 A2 LA06S0.60
= Denominmor = & vergge rmde recelvabdes 68,605 06 4 98 0TS 00

Change s there due o irenss b umover @ tesde recelvables




)

(H}

{1

(4

(K)

Trade payable turmover ratio (days)
- Mumersbor - Consupption of provisions, beverages and others
- Nenominator - Averape trcle payables

Met Capital Twrnover Batin
= Mumsessior - Hevenue
- Drenarmimarior
Equity
Resirves & Surplus
Total Equity

Mel Profit Ratin
- Mumenstor = Prodi afer tax
- Drenominsior - Revenue

Iﬂﬂlll'l on capital Emphiyed
- Mumerator = Farming befone inbersst and
- Dhenominmor

Shorebolders wialth

T = Current Bomowings

Man - Current Provisions

Total capital em phoyed

Returm oo Investment
= Mummersioe - Profit afier to
- Drenominator - Toial Asses

Dy b0 increase i profit and revenme, bt inoremse s ol m proportion with ket yer

MA MA
NA WA
A M

.43 248

4,703 Y344 320 B0 A5G, 60
10000040 1) 00, 60
3340692181 1,28 64, 00052
335,76 92181 129,64, 0852
43 .24
206,172,629 R4, 00,50 1,52
ATUITATIA | 3.201,H0,656.60
TR % B5,69%
2754230018 1.21.59.076.52
31,35 Te U2 8i 129 64 (), 52

- V2206, 154,10

13,26,79] 40 =

549,03, 713K 141,11 184,52

[ 1 38
2,06,12921.29 BRA0G901.52

A 40,93, 72753 2.34.00,741,20




